
THE STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT / THE UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK / ALBANY, NY 12234 

OFFICE OF THE STATE BOARD FOR ARCHITECTURE 
89 Washington Avenue 
Tel. (518) 474-3817 Ext. 110 
Fax: (518) 486-2981 
E-mail: archbd@nysed.gov
Website:  www.op.nysed.gov/arch.htm

State Board for Architecture  
Board Meeting 

1411 Broadway (between 39th & 40th Streets) - Tenth Floor – Regents’ Room – Manhattan 

Thursday, November 13, 2025 
9:00 am (start time for practical examination) 

10:15 am (start time for meeting) 

Members of the public may attend and observe the meeting outside of the Executive Session 

AGENDA 

1. Executive Session (9:00-10:15)
• Practical Exam 

Public Session (10:15 - completion) 
2. Approval of Minutes

3. Board Chair Report

4. Board Office Report

5. Old Business
• Project Construction Cost Estimates – NYC
• Architecture as STEM Profession
• Endorsement Pathway with UK
• 2025 NCARB Regional Summit – March 20/21, 2026 Architect Volunteer
• Women in Architecture Series

6. New Business
• September 2025 NCARB Board of Directors’ Recap
• Changes to the AXP Coming in November 2025
• Licensure Trends in New York
• Expansion in Use of Fraudulent Seals

7. Other Board Member Topics for Future Meetings

8. Adjournment

Next Meeting – Thursday, February 5, 2026 – NYC 

1

mailto:archbd@mail.nysed.gov
http://www.op.nysed.gov/arch.htm


 

Minutes of the Meeting   Present:  Nicole Dosso, Chair 
State Board for Architecture     Carol Bentel, Vice Chair 
1411 Broadway; Regents’ Room    Greg Canaras (10:13) 
New York, NY 10018      Fred Mosher, Jr. 
        Anik Pearson 
        Joel Peterson 

Talisha Sainvil  
Marcy Stanley 

 
      Absent:  Giuseppe Lauro   
          

Staff:  Robert Lopez, Executive Secretary 
Gina Sacco, Assistant in Professional 
Education 

 
Guests:  Michael Armstrong, NCARB 
  Joshua Batkin, NCARB 
  Edward Marley, NCARB 

Roxanne Alston, NCARB 
Sabrina Akbarally (10:35) 

 
August 6, 2025   
 

OPEN SESSION 
 

1. Motion: Mosher/Pearson: That the Board enter Executive Session.  
 

2. The Board resumed Open Session. 
  

3. Introductions, Welcome Guests, Board Departure  
NCARB representatives joined the meeting. Members of the State Board, staff, and NCARB 
representatives introduced themselves. The Executive Secretary read a letter recognizing Marcy 
Stanley for her 10 years of service as the Public Member on the Board.  

 
4. Approval of Minutes:  

Motion: Bentel/Sainvil: That the minutes of the May 21, 2025 meeting of the State Board for 
Architecture be approved.  
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
5. New Business: 

NCARB Visit: 
NCARB leadership discussed their various roles within the organization and their appreciation 
for this engagement with the State Board. Introductory topics included the accessibility of 
licensure, reimagining the pathways to practice, assessment of competencies required for 
practice, the transformation of the customer relations team to reflect the Pathways to Practice 
initiative, and NCARB’s advocacy capability for those jurisdictions that need or request 
assistance. 
 
 Pathways to Practice:  

Mr. Armstrong described how NCARB is examining the current licensure framework 
and is shifting from the three E’s (experience, education and exam) to a competency-

6

rlopez
Text Box
APPROVAL OF MINUTES



based model. They have examined current assessment tools to see how they can measure 
the 16 competencies. The goal is to measure the 16 competencies through validated 
assessments, with existing tools to be modified or eliminated and new tools to be 
developed.  

NCARB has taken steps to modify existing programs to better encompass the 
competencies. For example, the Architectural Experience Program (AXP) reporting 
requirement has been made more flexible, and the ESL Accommodations have led to 
increased passing rates on the exam. The Pathways initiative is still in the conceptual 
stage with several assessment tools being discussed. NCARB does expect to have some 
beta models ready for testing by June 2026, with the current goal to launch a minimally 
viable product in 2028 and to have the support of 2/3rds of the jurisdictions at the time 
of launch. NCARB has communicated its initiative with the AIA and the academic 
community, with some schools being more focused on the preparation and licensure of 
future architects than others. This initiative is not seeking to replace accreditation, and 
NCARB is talking with the NAAB about the initiative. 

NCARB asked Board members for questions and feedback on this initiative. The 
Executive Secretary requested confirmation that this would not lead to a two-tier system 
of education based upon one college emphasizing licensure over other schools. NCARB 
confirmed that is not the case. Members of the Board felt that the biggest challenge in 
this early stage is not knowing how NCARB will be measuring competencies and 
through what assessments those competencies will be judged. NCARB plans to engage 
Member Boards throughout this process and have several touchpoints with the Boards. It 
was noted that this initiative is quite possibly the biggest change to ever happen in the 
architecture licensure process. Member Bentel noted the value of internships taken while 
students are enrolled in college and Mr. Armstrong noted that paid internships that meet 
AXP requirements usually qualify towards the experience requirements. 

 IPAL (Integrated Path to Architectural Licensure):
NCARB leadership discussed the IPAL program that seeks to reduce the time to
licensure through the pursuit of the 3 E’s concurrently. Students in the 30 schools with
IPAL programs are averaging 2 years to licensure after graduation. NCARB has made
IPAL more flexible by requiring students to take the 6 ARE practice exams and not the
actual ARE divisions, while in school, broadening the range of academic programs that
are eligible to participate, requiring students to complete 75% of the AXP and not 100%
prior to graduation, and allowing students to maintain their eligibility to test post-
graduation. NCARB is looking to address IPAL challenges such as job placement and
realistic workload while enrolled in an IPAL program. NCARB noted that they will
validate the assessments for those students in educational programs in architecture, and
that there could be a situation where one school checks more of the competency boxes
than another, even for NAAB-accredited programs.

 NAAB Updates / Future of Outreach
NCARB leadership discussed the change in the financing structure for the NAAB.
Historically, the NAAB has been financed primarily by NCARB, AIA and ASCA, with
a small contribution from the AIAS. NCARB, AIA, and ASCA were unable to reach
agreement with the NAAB on an increased contribution amount, so the schools
themselves have been paying the NAAB. NCARB still engages with the NAAB on
committees, site visits, and via its Board, but does not anticipate going back to the old

7



funding structure. NCARB leadership notes that their main function is to support 
licensure candidates.  

Member Pearson discussed the recently held Licensing Advisors’ Summit that she 
attended. She noted the increased importance of Licensing Advisors at NAAB-
accredited programs and students in disseminating licensure information. She noted that 
given an instructor’s limited availability for office visits, student advocates are often the 
most effective method to spread awareness and to communicate with peers on licensure 
topics. Mr. Armstrong mentioned that NCARB has been doing student outreach for 18 
years and that the future of outreach is being revisited by NCARB Programs. He noted 
that there was not a cohesive movement around discussing the topic of licensure at a 
K12 level, and that continued AIA assistance in making K12 programs aware of 
architecture as a profession is needed. Ms. Akbarally, the student guest, discussed the 
value of attending the Licensure Advisors’ Summit and the importance of gaining 
knowledge about the benefits of NCARB programs. 

New York’s Updates to Education/Experience: 
The Executive Secretary reviewed New York’s recent changes to experience and 
education requirements. He noted that the experience requirements had not changed in 
many decades and the goal was to modernize and make them more flexible. These 
changes are already positively affecting candidates, especially the 50/50 split allowed in 
Categories I and J, except for the “all-experience” pathway. The Executive Secretary 
noted that the summary of the change is available on the Department’s website.  

NCARB leadership noted that they would like to continue the conversation around 
certain degrees leading to licensure in New York. It is possible that a common approach 
to curriculum development can be created that includes NCARB setting the standards 
and guidance on qualifying a program to meet specific competencies.  

Illegal Practice Awareness:  
Chair Dosso discussed the misuse of the title “Architect” and asked NCARB how they 
could help to educate individuals regarding title and practice laws. NCARB leadership 
noted this may be an opportunity for Licensing Advisors to help educate students and 
those who have recently graduated and will give this concept some additional thought. 

FIVERR:  
The Executive Secretary shared the FIVERR web site and brought up the numerous 
issues to be found on this site. NCARB leadership shared that there are early discussions 
with how to resolve the issues presented. The discussion has been sent to ICOR along 
with other fraudulent seal issues. Mr. Armstrong noted that a survey will be sent out to 
the Member Boards from ICOR seeking to find out the common themes on the issues.  

6. Board Chair Report:
Chair Dosso requested that Board members share the organizations, boards, and committees on
which they currently serve. She will send out a request to fellow members.

7. Board Office Report:
The Executive Secretary delivered the Board Office Report, which included updated statistics,
recent activities, and proposed legislation. He noted that the bill to modernize continuing
education (CE) requirements for landscape architects had passed both the Senate and Assembly

8



but has not yet been sent to the Executive. The Executive Secretary noted that the language 
mirrors recent CE changes for architects, except for an exemption for first-time licensees.  

8. Old Business:
2025 NCARB Annual Business Meeting:
The attendees shared their experiences at the Annual Business Meeting, with the Executive
Secretary highlighting workshops that he found valuable. He also shared the election results for
the NCARB Board of Directors. He will share NCARB’s responses to the Town Hall
discussions that was recently received.

Project Construction Cost Estimates - NYC:
The Executive Secretary noted that Member Pearson, Chair Dosso, and himself will attend a
meeting with AIA NY staff and stakeholders next week.

Women in Architecture Series:
Member Pearson shared her experience with the Women in Architecture series, now in its sixth
season, and she noted an upcoming session at Workshop/APD. Member Peterson noted he will
make the connection with leaders from his firm to become involved in this series.

FIVERR:
This topic was discussed with NCARB representatives earlier in the meeting. The Executive
Secretary noted that the issue has been sent to Department attorneys to review possible next
steps.

9. New Business:
2026 NCARB Regional Summit:
The Executive Secretary noted the meeting will take place on March 20 and 21, 2026 and asked
for any volunteers who would like to attend. Should travel approval be granted by New York
State, Member Peterson noted that he can attend.

Future Meeting dates:
Dates for the 2026 Board meetings were agreed to as follows: February 5, May 20, August 5,
and November 4.

NCARB Discussion Continued:

Architecture as STEM: 
NCARB leadership agreed that the profession of architecture should be considered a STEM 
field and suggested that the AIA should be involved in the effort to have it so designated. 
NCARB leadership is meeting with senior-level staff with the AIA and will follow up with 
the Executive Secretary to discuss possible next steps.  

Outreach: 
Member Peterson noted that there were initiatives he was working on with NCARB staff 
prior to the changes in outreach. NCARB leadership noted this and will have someone 
connect with him. He also suggested that there could be value in meeting more often for the 
Licensing Advisors’ Summit, with NCARB hosting gatherings via Zoom for shorter 
durations. NCARB leadership will bring this concept back to staff for further conversations. 

9



 

 
 
 
 
Motion: Stanley /Mosher: Moved to adjourn.  
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
The next meeting of the Board will be November 13, 2025, in NYC. 

 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

 
Robert Lopez, RA 
Executive Secretary 

10



 

Minutes of the Meeting   Present:  Nicole Dosso, Chair 
State Board for Architecture     Carol Bentel, Vice Chair 
1411 Broadway; Regents’ Room    Greg Canaras 
New York, NY 10018      Fred Mosher, Jr. 
        Anik Pearson 
        Joel Peterson 

Talisha Sainvil  
Marcy Stanley 
 

Absent:  Giuseppe Lauro  
          

Staff:  Robert Lopez, Executive Secretary 
Gina Sacco, Assistant in Professional 
Education 

 
August 6, 2025  
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

1. Education Review:  
The Board reviewed the Master of Science in Space Architecture program from the University at 
Houston. After review of the courses in the program, the Board recommended that it count 
towards Education Category E and be worth 1 additional unit of education award.  
                                                                                                                                                       

2. Endorsement Experience Review: 
An application for licensure by endorsement for a candidate in Connecticut was reviewed. The 
Board evaluated the candidate’s experience and projects and recommended that licensure be 
granted.  

 
3. Practical Exam: 

The Executive Secretary called for volunteers to conduct a practical exam in November. 
Members Mosher, Sainvil and Canaras will conduct the exam, with Member Peterson attending 
to observe the exam. 

 
4. One disciplinary case was reviewed. 

 
5. Approval of Minutes:  

Motion: Bentel/Sainvil: That the minutes of the May 21, 2025 meeting of the State Board for 
Architecture be approved.  
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

6. Motion: Stanley/Bentel: That the Board resume the Open Session.  
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

       
Respectfully submitted,    

    
 
 

Robert Lopez, RA    
 Executive Secretary 

11



 

NEW YORK STATE BOARD FOR ARCHITECTURE 
BOARD OFFICE REPORT 

 
Registered Architects (RA) 
 
  Current Resident Registered Architects           11,880 
  Current Non-Resident Registered Architects  9,435 
  Foreign Registered Architects             436 
  Total Number of RA as of 7/1/25                      21,751 
 
 
Licenses Issued 
   
2025 – 683 (thru 9/30); 2024 – 870; 2023 – 905; 2022 – 940; 2021 – 804; 2020 – 681 
 
ARE Candidates   (July 18, 2025 – October 15, 2025)          1 
Early Admit ARE Candidates  (July 18, 2025 – October 15, 2025)          158 
NCARB Certification   (July 18, 2025 – October 15, 2025)                    82  
Endorsement    (July 18, 2025 – October 15, 2025)                     5 
Via Educ, Exp & Exams  (July 18, 2025 – October 15, 2025)                      10 
 
 
Candidate Admissions to ARE 
 
2025 (thru 9/30 – 684); 2024 – 1,031; 2023 – 1,030; 2022 – 770; 2021 – 875; 2020 – 889 
 
 
OP/Staff Activities 
 
Along with Member Peterson, the Executive Secretary virtually attended the Region 2 Post 
NCARB September Board meeting on October 2nd.  Key takeaways from the meeting will be 
discussed under new business. 
 
Along with Board office staff, the Executive Secretary met with NCARB staff members 
Roxanne Alston and Katrina Humphrey at the Education Department on October 23rd.  The 
opportunity gave staff a chance to meet Ms. Alston and Ms. Humphrey in-person and for staff to 
become more familiar with services provided by NCARB to New York. 
 
 
Legislative / Regulatory Activity  
The NYS Legislature is in a new two-year session that will run from January 2025 December 
2026. Although early in the session, legislation of interest follows:    
 
A7561 / S7220 – Relates to continuing education requirements for landscape architects 
Relates to continuing education requirements for landscape architects; provides that adjustments 
to such requirements may be granted for health reasons, active duty, or other good cause; limits 
the number of credit hours that may carry over to the next registration period. 

13

rlopez
Text Box
BOARD OFFICE REPORT



 

Bill has passed the Assembly and passed in the Senate; has not yet been delivered to the 
Executive. 
 
S3268 / No Same as – Relates to comprehensive delivery of infrastructure delivered 
between a public entity and a development entity 
Relates to comprehensive delivery of infrastructure delivered between a public entity and a 
development entity consolidating at least two or more of design, construction, finance, 
operations and/or maintenance work, including construction manager or construction manager at 
risk; authorizes a public entity to pursue certain authorized projects; provides for project funding 
and authorizes the public entity to accept from any source any grant, donation, gift or other form 
of conveyance of land, money; provides for labor and public interest protections; makes related 
provisions. 
Bill is referred to Procurement and Contracts in the Senate. 
 
A5838 / No Same as – Relates to pre-approved construction documents 
Requires municipalities which issue building permits to provide pre-approved construction 
documents at no cost for the types of residential building permitted to be constructed in such 
jurisdiction. 
Bill is referred to Governmental Operations in the Senate. 
 
S1834 / No Same as – Relates to the licensing of landscape architects 
Relates to certain licensing exemptions for landscape architects. 
Bill is committed to Rules in the Senate 
 
S3287 / A4942 – Relates to an engineering technology degree 
Provides that an applicant with a bachelor’s degree or higher in engineering technology and an 
applicant with a bachelor’s degree or higher in engineering shall have the same number of 
education and experience credit requirements, shall have the same eligibility for an identification 
card as “an engineer in training”, as well as examination and examination eligibility 
requirements. 
Bill is referred to Higher Education in the Senate and is referred to Higher Education in the 
Assembly. 
 
A483 / S5392 – Permits certain not-for-profit corporations engaged in engineering for 
certain conservation efforts to do business or provide professional engineering, land 
surveying or professional geology services in the state 
Relates to permitting certain not-for-profit corporations engaged in engineering for certain 
conservation efforts to do business or provide professional engineering, land surveying, or 
professional geology services in the state. 
Bill is referred to Higher Education in the Assembly and is passed in the Senate. 
 
S1141 / A4840 – Relates to the requirements for certification for certified interior designers 
Relates to the educational and examination requirements for certification as a certified interior 
designer; provides an exemption from the education requirements for architects licensed under 
Article 147 of the NYS Education Law. 
Bill is referred to Higher Education in the Senate and is referred to Higher Education in the 
Assembly. 
 

14



A2571-A / S620-A – Relates to the practice of geology 
Adds the practice of geology to legacy corporations. 
Bill is printed in the Assembly and is repassed in the Senate. 

S2146 / A4907 – Repeals and reenacts provisions on time limitations on certain actions 
against professional engineers, architects, other designers and construction contractors 
Repeals and reenacts statute of limitation provisions on wrongful death, personal injury and 
property damage actions against professional engineers, architects, landscape architects, land 
surveyors and construction contractors to provide for a limitations period of ten years after 
completion of improvement to real property; "completion", which constitutes the accrual date for 
the limitations period, is defined; provides for a one year extension for injuries to person or 
property or wrongful death which occur during the tenth year after completion. 
Bill is committed to Rules in the Senate and is referred to Higher Education in the Assembly. 

A4680 / No Same as – New York Emergency Responder Act  
Enacts the New York emergency responder act limiting the liability of certain emergency 
responders. 
Bill is referred to Governmental Operations in the Assembly. 

S4577 / A5520 - Requires public authorities to negotiate with most qualified architectural, 
engineering, geological, landscape architectural and/or surveying professional firms before 
negotiating with other firms 
Requires public authorities and public benefit corporations to negotiate with professional firms 
providing architectural, engineering, geological, landscape architectural or surveying services in 
order from the most qualified to the least qualified with regard to the provision of services to the 
authority or corporation 
Bill is reported and committed to Procurement and Contracts in the Senate and is referred to 
Corporations, Authorities and Commissions in the Assembly. 

S4877 / No Same as – Relates to the establishment of the water-based fire protection 
licensure act 
Establishes water-based fire protection licensure act, setting forth licensure requirements for 
contractors engaged in the business of the layout, installing, repairing, inspecting, testing, or 
maintaining of water-based fire protection systems and components. 
Bill is referred to Consumer Protection in the Senate. 

S7104 / No Same as – NYC DoB False Documents  
Relates to false statements in documents submitted to the department of buildings of the city of 
New York 
Bill is referred to Cities in the Senate. 

A5678 / No Same As – Increases to $50,000 for cost of construction threshold 
Increases to $50,000 the cost of the construction of a building, structure or public work, above 
which a professional engineer, land surveyor or architect must be. 
Bill is referred to Higher Education in the Assembly. 

15



S7217 / A7675 – Relates to building permits 
Authorizes a city, town or village to establish a program whereby a building permit may be 
issued based upon certification by a registered architect or professional engineer. 
Bill is referred to Local Government in the Senate and is referred to Local Governments in the 
Assembly. 

Bills Not yet Introduced 

S / A – Relates to public employees’ supervision, examination, review, and determination of 
acceptability of public works projects performed by contractors 
Requires certain public employees to be on the site for the duration of public works projects 
completed by contractors; requires such certain public employees to review a contractor’s work 
on public works projects and determine whether the work performed is acceptable. 
Bill passed in the Senate and passed in the Assembly but was vetoed by the Executive in 2024. 
Bill is not yet introduced this session. 

S / A – Relates to licensure requirements for professional geologists 
Provides that the education requirements to be licensed as a professional geologist may be 
partially substituted by practical experience; relates to the issuance of an identification card as a 
geologist in training. 
Bill is not yet introduced 

S / A– Establishes a program where a municipal department of buildings may accept 
certain construction documents for code compliance  
Establishes a program where a municipal department of buildings may accept construction 
documents required to be filed in relation to code compliance prior to issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy with less than a full examination by such municipal department of buildings based on 
a professional certification of an applicant who is an architect or professional engineer; makes 
related provisions. 
Bill is not yet introduced 

S / A – Requires certain engineering plans that could pose a material risk to public safety to 
bear a stamp of approval of a professional engineer  
Requires certain engineering plans or specifications for engineering work or services that could 
pose a material risk to public safety to bear a stamp of approval of a professional engineer and 
authorizes the public service commission to promulgate rules and regulations relating to such 
requirement. 
Bill is not yet introduced 

S / A – Interior Design/State Contracting 
Adds interior design services as a type of contract that can be entered into and negotiated by the 
state 
Bill is not yet introduced 

S / A - Licensing consequences for serious abuse of self-certification privileges  
Relates to licensing consequences for architects or engineers who seriously abuse their self-
certification privileges 

16



 

Bill is not yet introduced 
 
 
Office of Professional Discipline 
 
N/A 

17



Page 1

Message from
the President

Dear Member Board Community,

In mid-September, I gathered the FY26 Board of Directors 
in New Castle, New Hampshire, for our quarterly Board 
meeting. During our three-day meeting, the Board 
intentionally focused much of our time on discussions 
related to NCARB’s Pathways to Practice initiative, including 
hearing updates on the work of the Licensure Process 
Research & Development Task Force and reviewing staff 
efforts to implement programmatic changes that will align 
current programs with our Competency Standard. 

As we continue our efforts to create flexible, accessible 
pathways to licensure, we remain focused on gathering and 
responding to feedback from our membership—with your 
input and insight, we can ensure that the future of licensure meets the needs of our members and our customers. I 
encourage you to share your feedback throughout the remainder of this fiscal year, and we will continue to check in 
with you and provide further updates on these conversations as the year progresses.

This first quarter of my presidency has been busy and varied. It has provided a variety of opportunities to interact with 
the broader NCARB community, including conversations with architecture students, engagement with our external 
partners, focused training with our licensing advisors, discussions with our volunteers, and more. I’m excited about the 
year ahead and look forward to connecting with you throughout FY26. 

Best wishes,

September 2025

Edward T. Marley, FAIA, NCARB, LEED AP 
FY26 President

FY26 President Marley engaged with students during an open house 
event at NCARB’s office in Washington, DC.

18

rlopez
Text Box
NEW BUSINESS

rlopez
Text Box
SEPTEMBER 2025 NCARB  BOARD OF DIRECTORS' RECAP



Page 2

September 2025BODbrief
This publication is designed to provide updates on the actions and discussions of the NCARB Board of Directors following meetings.  
Please remember that the information provided here may be confidential and will be indicated as such when necessary.

Executive Summary
President Edward T. Marley, FAIA, NCARB, LEED AP, convened the September meeting of the FY26 NCARB Board of 
Directors of the National Council of Architectural Registration Boards (NCARB) on September 11-13 in New Castle, 
New Hampshire. 

President Marley led the Board through a variety of topics, including several updates related to NCARB’s ongoing 
Pathways to Practice initiative. As part of their discussions, the Board engaged with several committee chairs, heard 
an update on the agenda for the upcoming Futures Symposium, and took disciplinary action on a recommendation 
from the Professional Conduct Committee. 

Additionally, the Board explored a potential code of conduct for NCARB volunteers and reviewed findings from a 
survey related to the theft or fraudulent use of architecture seals. The Board also began work on the next iteration 
of NCARB’s Strategic Plan with a blue-sky exploration of NCARB’s ideal future. 

Policy Review and Professional Conduct Recommendation
The Board began the meeting by continuing its effort to regularly review Board policies and update them as needed 
to ensure they align with current best practices. During the September meeting, the Board reviewed the policy for 
funding and selecting locations for NCARB’s annual Regional Summit, the general travel and expense reimbursement 
policy, and the policy for suspending and reinstating an architect’s NCARB Certificate based on recommendations 
from the PCC. 

Following this review, the Board discussed and took action on a recommendation from the PCC to reinstate an 
architect’s NCARB Certificate following a previous suspension. The reasons for potential Certificate revocation and 
reinstatement are outlined in NCARB’s Certification Guidelines.  

Pathways to Practice	
Pathways Status

Chief Programs Officer Jared Zurn provided the Board with an update on the ongoing Pathways to Practice effort. 
The Board reviewed NCARB staff preparations to implement changes to the Architectural Experience Program® 
(AXP®). These changes, which go into effect on November 18, 2025, focus on two key areas:  

19

https://www.ncarb.org/sites/default/files/Certification_Guidelines.pdf


Page 3BODbrief | September 2025

• Aligning the six experience area descriptions with the NCARB Competency Standard for Architects. As part of
this change, NCARB will remove the 96 tasks for candidates reporting hourly experience and replace them with
descriptions of competencies taken from the Competency Standard.

• Replacing the program’s reporting requirement with a new reporting policy. The new reporting policy will
allow 100% credit for experience reported up to one year after it is earned, and 75% credit for all experience
older than one year. This policy change will be retroactively applied to all current candidates. This will result in
many candidates receiving additional credit hours toward fulfilling the AXP.

Additionally, CPO Zurn provided the Board with an update on the efforts of the Licensure Process Research & 
Development Task Force’s recent collaborations with the Member Board Executives (MBE) and programs (Education, 
Experience, and Examination) committees. The task force will continue collaborating with these and other 
committees throughout the year as NCARB moves into the next phase of future licensure process development. 

Assessments Insights

Next, the Board heard an update related to the development of assessment criteria that will ensure that each 
licensure assessment method can reliably and consistently measure a candidate’s competency. As part of this 
discussion, CPO Zurn and Assistant Vice Presidents of Programs Jeremy Fretts and Michelle Cohn provided an 
overview of how competency would be assessed through each method. The Board discussed challenges and 
opportunities related to each assessment method, providing feedback that will guide the development of future 
licensure model prototypes. 

Communications

The Board also engaged in an activity related to ongoing Pathways to Practice communications, led by Vice President 
of Marketing & Communications Andy McIntyre. Following up on an engagement at the Board’s meeting immediately 
following June’s Annual Business Meeting, the Board discussed common member and stakeholder questions and concerns 
related to Pathways to Practice. As part of this discussion, the Board also explored work being done at the staff level 
related to Pathways to Practice throughout FY26, identifying outcomes that will help inform the Board’s decisions. 

Committee Reports
Continuing an engagement approach implemented last fiscal year, the Board of Directors plans to connect with 
several committee chairs at each Board meeting in order to better understand committees’ progress on their 
charges and any issues that require broader leadership awareness. During the September meeting, the Board met 
with chairs from the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Committee; MBE Committee; and Licensure Process Research 
& Development Task Force. Each committee chair gave a brief update on their committee’s efforts so far this fiscal 
year, after which the Board posed any follow-up questions or comments. 

Futures Symposium Preview
Next, Futures Collaborative Chair Dena Prastos and staff liaison McIntyre provided the Board with an overview of the 
upcoming Futures Symposium, which will be held immediately prior to the 2025 Committee Summit in December. 
The Board reviewed the draft agenda for the event, including key topic areas of focus, and discussed a draft report 

20



Page 4BODbrief | September 2025

on the Collaborative’s research topics from FY25 that will be shared with attendees in advance to inform discussion 
during the symposium. 

Member Board Satisfaction Survey 
To close out Thursday’s engagements, CEO Armstrong and Vice President of Council Relations Josh Batkin shared 
highlights from the most recent Member Board Satisfaction Survey. Released annually, the Member Board 
Satisfaction Survey gathers feedback from NCARB’s membership on how effectively NCARB is meeting their needs 
across a variety of areas, including membership services, communications, and events. 

Results from the FY25 survey demonstrated that overall member satisfaction remains high, with support for NCARB’s 
ongoing Pathways to Practice initiative. This, along with the changing regulatory climate and advancing technology in 
architecture, were the key issues members were most focused on in FY25. Going forward, the Board will continue to 
use the results of the survey to ensure that NCARB is meeting member needs as effectively as possible. 

Strategic Planning
On Friday, the Board began NCARB’s multi-year strategic planning process with a conversation designed to define 
the organization’s ideal future state. After brainstorming potential futures for the organization, its members, and 
key stakeholders, the Board split into small groups to conduct deep-dive conversations into the concepts or ideas 
that most excited and concerned them for the future. The Board shared the results of these deep dive discussions 
on Saturday morning, with the results guiding ongoing conversations regarding the organization’s direction at future 
strategic planning discussions. 

NCARB Customer Relations
Vice President of Customer Relations Roxanne Alston provided the Board with an overview of NCARB’s ongoing 
efforts to ensure its Customer Relations team is best positioned to respond to member and customer needs. This 
includes some expanded customer support areas designed to better align with NCARB’s strategic initiatives and 
streamline the process for addressing customer requests, especially those related to NCARB’s international, AXP 
Portfolio, and Education Alternative programs.

As part of her session, Alston provided the board with some example audio phone calls that demonstrated the types 
of inquiries that her team regularly receives and the level of customer service expected of the NCARB’s Customer 
Relations team.

The Board also reviewed recent customer contact volumes and the most common areas of customer inquiries, as 
well as member feedback related to the quality of licensure transmittals. Currently, NCARB’s transmittal accuracy rate 
is over 99%, with steady increases seen since FY21. Additionally, NCARB’s average customer satisfaction score is 88%, 
well above the 73-78% industry average.  
 

21



Page 5BODbrief | September 2025

Ethics and Volunteer Code of Conduct
Following up on discussions regarding NCARB’s study of the overall volunteer experience, the Board had an initial 
conversation regarding creating a Volunteer Code of Conduct. The code of conduct, if established, would help 
outline NCARB’s expectations regarding volunteer ethics and engagement. The Board of Directors will continue 
exploring this topic at future Board meetings.

Financial Updates
Secretary/Treasurer Miguel Rodriguez provided a briefing on the state of the Council’s investment portfolios, the 
FY25 financial results from the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2025, and an update on the first two months of the 
new fiscal year. Current trends suggest that NCARB is on track to meet its budgeted revenue and expense estimates 
for the year. 

Additionally, the Board reviewed a report on trends in historical Board expenses, identifying factors that contributed 
to higher and lower Board costs per fiscal year. The Board reflected on the fact that FY25 Board costs were below 
the established inflationary adjusted target, in part due to the Board’s previous decision to begin holding its April 
Board meetings at NCARB’s office in Washington, DC. 

The Board also received an update on supplemental funds provided to the American Institute of Architecture 
Students (AIAS) and the National Organization of Minority Architect Students (NOMAS). In light of the cessation of 
funding to the National Architectural Accrediting Board (NAAB), NCARB redirected a portion of its budgeted NAAB 
grant to instead support the advancement of architectural education by providing funding to AIAS and NOMAS. 
Elements of this funding will include developing leadership training and opportunities for architecture students, 
supporting design competitions, conducting joint leadership outreach, and augmenting the AIAS Freedom by Design™ 
Program, among other activities. 

Architectural Seal Theft/Fraud
In response to feedback from Member Boards indicating an increase in incidents of seal theft or identity fraud, NCARB 
and our design regulation partners in the Interorganizational Council on Regulation (ICOR) released a survey designed 
to collect information on this topic from our member licensing boards. On Saturday, the Board of Directors reviewed 
results from the survey, which included responses from over 100 licensing board members across the design professions. 

Key findings from the survey indicate that while the majority of boards have encountered seal theft or fraud in 
the past year, it is not a common occurrence for most and most frequently pertains to residential design projects. 
However, respondents generally agreed that more can be done to address fraudulent use of seals and supported 
ICOR members taking additional measures to advise combating this trend. NCARB’s Board of Directors will continue 
to guide ongoing discussions between NCARB, our ICOR partners, and the International Code Council (ICC) as we 
identify potential enforcement recommendations.   
 

22



Page 6BODbrief | September 2025

Advocacy
Next, Vice President Batkin provided the Board with an overview of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for government 
relations and public polling firms, with a goal of selecting a consultant to assist in researching and developing an 
advocacy strategy to ensure NCARB’s members have the appropriate support to help them adopt multiple pathways 
to licensure in the future. 

The Board reviewed plans to generate an overall adoption strategy involving jurisdictional statutes and regulations, as 
well as voter research, general government relations support, and more. Results from this research will help guide the 
development of an implementation timeline and approach for NCARB’s Pathways to Practice initiative. 

Lineup
The Board also reviewed and approved a proposed change to the Operating Agreement of its nonprofit 
subsidiary, Lineup Management Services, LLC. This change updated language related to the composition of 
Lineup’s Board of Directors. 

Reports
President’s Report

President Marley provided the Board with an update on his activities since taking office, including: a recap of his 
engagement with NCARB staff in departmental kick-off meetings; engagements with students at the NCARB office 
as part of the American Institute of Architecture Students (AIAS) Grassroots Conference in Washington, DC; his 
participation in NCARB’s Licensing Advisors Summit in Minneapolis, MN; service as a faculty member on the FY26 
NCARB Leadership Institute; engagement with ICOR leadership; and a visit with the New York Board of Architects as 
well as the American Institute of Architects (AIA) New York City. 

CEO Update

CEO Armstrong also fielded questions on topics covered in his view-ahead CEO Update video, providing an update 
on staff efforts related to implementing programmatic changes, launching the new Mutual Recognition Agreements 
(MRAs) with South Africa and Canada, initiating a first round of customer feedback through focus groups on 
Pathways to Practice, and more. 

23



24

rlopez
Text Box
NEW BUSINESS

rlopez
Text Box
CHANGES TO THE AXP COMING IN NOVEMBER 2025



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



From: Kawecki, Jennifer
To: Robert Lopez
Subject: Explore Licensure Trends for New York
Date: Thursday, October 2, 2025 10:59:26 AM
Attachments: image001.png

New York-Jurisdictional-Data-Packets_202509.pdf

Hi Rob,

As you know, NCARB analyzes and shares data highlighting trends on the path to licensure in
our annual NCARB by the Numbers publication. At the national level, we use this information
to better understand the architecture community and make strategic decisions about our
programs and services. 

We’ve heard from our members that this data can be incredibly useful at the jurisdictional
level when it comes to educating policymakers, guiding jurisdictional changes, and
understanding the unique challenges faced by candidates in your region. 

Attached, you’ll find a packet of data highlights for your jurisdiction, including information
about demographic representation, licensure progress, and exam pass rates from the 2024
calendar year. Each chart includes a basic explanation of what data is being shared, as well as
an overview of the trends NCARB has seen at the national level for comparison. 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out. 

Best,
Jenny Kawecki (she/her)

Manager, Content Strategy

National Council of Architectural Registration Boards
1401 H Street NW Suite 500
Washington, DC 20005
Direct: 202-879-0531
Customer Service: 202-879-0520

Connect with us: www.ncarb.org 
LinkedIn | YouTube | Instagram

-NCARB Disclaimer-
The information contained in this email may be confidential and/or legally privileged. If the
reader of this message is not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any

32

mailto:JKawecki@ncarb.org
mailto:Robert.Lopez@nysed.gov
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ncarb.org%2Fnbtn-2024&data=05%7C02%7Crobert.lopez%40nysed.gov%7Cb7095393c41b4587b13008de01c439c2%7C15ef16e84ce04fc392e26a7a6c8e765e%7C0%7C0%7C638950139634393658%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AWrHTpL00hQ2NyXJGXVhJ7UJJ0Vl3uxwWVh%2B0TNdtcg%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ncarb.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7Crobert.lopez%40nysed.gov%7Cb7095393c41b4587b13008de01c439c2%7C15ef16e84ce04fc392e26a7a6c8e765e%7C0%7C0%7C638950139634425060%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SZNhm%2F5Ku6OI0FVf%2Bmzr3rxmL6ZvpBV1cAi3FJsxs6U%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2F849224%3Ftrk%3Dtyah%26trkInfo%3DtarId%253A1407939971145%252Ctas%253Ancarb%252Cidx%253A4-1-6&data=05%7C02%7Crobert.lopez%40nysed.gov%7Cb7095393c41b4587b13008de01c439c2%7C15ef16e84ce04fc392e26a7a6c8e765e%7C0%7C0%7C638950139634443244%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=KAj86gpwTA0xGlGRintdzl5uM0xnnuf%2B1xVDZaaG2ac%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2F%40ncarb&data=05%7C02%7Crobert.lopez%40nysed.gov%7Cb7095393c41b4587b13008de01c439c2%7C15ef16e84ce04fc392e26a7a6c8e765e%7C0%7C0%7C638950139634461643%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=VBTUBXbe1S28Zi8tkC6L3CKmI%2BBsU1J56D1rsnedNMg%3D&reserved=0
https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fncarb%2F&data=05%7C02%7Crobert.lopez%40nysed.gov%7Cb7095393c41b4587b13008de01c439c2%7C15ef16e84ce04fc392e26a7a6c8e765e%7C0%7C0%7C638950139634480205%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=K%2FlpjMlU18VkVKU%2Btz0zFU5m%2BEJX2ukjMkabEkESgGI%3D&reserved=0

.
NC A R B LET'S GO FURTHER






JURISDICTIONAL DATA
NEW YORK
2025







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 2


TABLE OF CONTENTS


Introduction����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3


Architectural Licensure Overview��������������������������������������������������4


Jurisdictional Demographics������������������������������������������������������������� 6


ARE 5.0 Pass Rates��������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 8







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 3


INTRODUCTION
NCARB regularly analyzes and shares data highlighting current trends along the path to licensure, 
including program completion time, pass rates, and demographics. This information, which is 
gathered from customers’ NCARB Records, enables NCARB and our key stakeholders to make 
strategic decisions, educate policymakers and the public, and guide changes to our programs 	
and services. 


As a leader in your jurisdiction, you can use this data to guide discussions at the jurisdictional 
level. The information included in this packet has been filtered to share data gathered from 
licensure candidates and architects in your jurisdiction only. Each chart includes a basic 
explanation of what data is being shared, as well as an overview of the trends NCARB has seen 
at the national level for comparison.


As you review the data, here are a few key things to keep in mind: 


•	 Your jurisdictional data may not align with national trends. 


•	 Not all NCARB Record holders submit their demographic data. However, the majority do 
self-report their demographic data.


•	 Not all licensees in your jurisdiction are NCARB Record holders. 


•	 Depending on the number of licensure candidates and architects in your jurisdiction, you 
may see a much higher degree of fluctuation over time compared to the fluctuation seen 
at the national level. Jurisdictions with a smaller pool of candidates/architects are more 
likely to see dramatic change from year to year. 


•	 NCARB will not share demographic data publicly if there are fewer than 30 individuals in a 
designated group (our threshold for a valid sample size). However, we have shared all data 
with you regardless of this sample size to ensure you have the most complete picture of 
your jurisdiction.


•	 If no information is shown for a specific field or demographic, it is because no individuals 
in your jurisdiction fit that field or demographic. 


•	 The timeframe for the data reflected in a chart varies by chart. Refer to the chart 
description for each chart to find this information. 


If you have questions about the data presented in this packet, please feel free to reach out to 
Jenny Kawecki at jkawecki@ncarb.org.







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 4


ARCHITECTURAL  
LICENSURE OVERVIEW


2,434
reporting


experience


620
reporting experience
and taking the exam


2,051
taking the exam 5,105


active
licensure


candidates


541
candidates finished the path to licensure


53%
Pass Rate


45%
Reciprocal Licenses


55%
Resident Licenses


21,576
architects


3,518
certificate holders


• Pennsylvania


• New Jersey


• Connecticut


Architects in New York are most
frequently also licensed in:


LICENSED ARCHITECTS


LICENSURE CANDIDATES


New York


National Average
58%


This chart provides and overview of licensure candidates and licensed architects in your 
jurisdiction during the calendar year 2024, including: 


•	 The number of candidates working to complete the Architectural Experience Program® 
(AXP®), Architect Registration Examination® (ARE®), or both


•	 The average ARE pass rate in your jurisdiction compared to the national average







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 5


•	 The number of candidates who completed the licensure path in your jurisdiction


•	 The states where architects in your jurisdiction are most likely to hold reciprocal licenses 


National Trends
•	 In 2024, the number of active licensure candidates rose by 5% to 39,499. 


•	 There were 116,005 U.S. architects in 2024, a 4% decrease from 2023.


•	 The number of new architects held steady at 3,606.


•	 In 2024, the average time to licensure fell to 12.9 years, the first time this number has 
decreased since the COVID-19 pandemic.


•	 The average ratio of in-state to out-of-state licenses shifted slightly, with 59% reciprocal 
and 41% resident licenses.







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 6


JURISDICTIONAL DEMOGRAPHICS
Racial, Ethnic, and Gender Diversity


This table shows the approximate racial, ethnic, and gender diversity of individuals at each 
career stage for individuals who were seeking licensure or were licensed in this jurisdiction 
during the calendar year 2024. Individuals can be represented in multiple career stages. To 
ensure data privacy around exam performance, NCARB will report “insufficient information” if 
your jurisdiction has fewer than 5 individuals in a given demographic group in the “Taking the 
ARE” category.


All Architects New Architects Taking the ARE
Submitting
Experience


Opened NCARB
Record


G
en


de
r Female


Male


Et
hn


ic
it


y


American Indian or
Alaska Native


Another Group


Asian


Black or African
American


Hispanic, Latino, or
Spanish


Middle Eastern or
North African


Native Hawaiian or
Other Pacific Islander


White


To
ta


l


Total


2769 1562


1522 1498


1252


1155 485


461268


186


2759 15081102


814715 664


453


424


384329


297


279


273


263233


174


173142


104


86 59


47


3838


34 27


14


12


12


11 8


8


8


6


55


3


3


2


4795 33772671 1022504


New York


*** values do not meet NCARB's data privacy condition







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 7


Career Stage Definitions


New NCARB Record Holders: This stage includes all individuals who started an NCARB Record 
in 2024. Starting an NCARB Record is an approximation for beginning the path to licensure, as all 
candidates need an NCARB Record to document the education, experience, and examination 
requirements for licensure.


Reporting Experience: This stage includes all individuals who documented experience toward 
the AXP in 2024, based on the work date of the experience report. 


Taking the ARE: This stage includes all individuals who took an exam division in 2024. 


New Architects: This stage includes all individuals who finished their final “core requirement” for 
licensure in 2024. Core licensure requirements include education, experience, and examination, 
although some jurisdictions do have additional requirements. This stage is an approximation for 
individuals who received an initial license in 2024.


All Certificate Holders: This stage includes all individuals who hold an NCARB Certificate, which 
can be used to approximate the makeup of the architect population in this jurisdiction.


National Trends


NCARB has seen consistent growth in gender equity and racial diversity across all candidate 
stages over the past 5 years. In 2024, 49% of the licensure candidate population identified as a 
person of color, and 46% were women. 


Women now make up 47% of the testing population, and typically earn their licenses faster 
than men—completing requirements a year sooner on average. In 2024, nearly half (44%) of 
candidates completing the AXP and a third (33%) of candidates completing the ARE identified as 
a person of color.


In 2024, we also saw racial, ethnic, and gender diversity in the licensure candidate population 
beginning to make its way to the pool of licensed architects: in 2024, 1 in 3 new architects 
identified as a person of color..







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 8


ARE 5.0 PASS RATES
NCARB tracks pass rates to understand candidate performance across the exam’s six divisions. A 
“pass rate” reflects the proportion of division attempts that scored at or above the cut score for 
that division. “Overall pass rate” refers to the average pass rate across all six divisions. Thanks to 
enhanced data science capabilities, NCARB has been able to segment and analyze pass rates by 
demographic information, including race and ethnicity, gender, and age.


The charts below include information about pass rates in your jurisdiction during the calendar 
year 2024, including pass rates segmented by race, ethnicity, and gender. 


Overall ARE 5.0 Pass Rates


This chart shows each division’s pass rate for all candidates in your jurisdiction, including all 
division attempts in the calendar year 2024. The grey line indicates the national pass rate for all 
candidates on each division.


Construction &
Evaluation


Practice Management Programming &
Analysis


Project Development
& Documentation


Project Management Project Planning &
Design


58%


47%


57% 54%
59%


44%


ARE 5.0 Overall Pass Rates for New York
National Pass Rates


New York Pass Rates







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 9


Shift in Pass Rates by Division


This chart shows the change in ARE 5.0 pass rates for candidates in your jurisdiction across all 
six divisions over the last five years. The dashed grey line indicates the national pass rate for all 
candidates on each division.


At a national level, overall pass rates fell by 3% in 2024—a return to average following last 
year’s increase. NCARB’s free practice exams have helped drive this positive change, providing 
candidates with greater insight into the testing experience. Overall, candidates who took one of 
NCARB’s free practice exams before attempting the related division were 16 percentage points 
more likely to pass.


58%


47%


57%


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


54%


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


59%


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024


44%


Project Development &
Documentation Project Management Project Planning & Design


Pass Rates in New York
By Division since 2020


Construction & Evaluation Practice Management Programming & Analysis


National Average
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
New York Average







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 10


ARE 5.0 Divisional Pass Rates by Demographic


This chart shows each division’s 2024 pass rate for candidates in your jurisdiction segmented by 
the candidate’s race/ethnicity and gender. The grey bar indicates the national pass rate for the 
related demographic group on each division.


The chart shows data for the Construction & Evaluation, Practice Management, and Programming 
& Analysis divisions on this page and data for the Project Development & Documentation, 
Project Management, and Project Planning & Design divisions on the next page.


American Indian or
Alaska Native


Another Group


Asian


Black or African
American


Hispanic, Latino,
or Spanish


Middle Eastern or
North African


Native Hawaiian
or Other Pacific
Islander


White


50% 40%


100%


45%


100%
73%


52% 45% 37% 41% 48% 37%


52% 57% 47% 58% 51% 48%


40% 51%
29% 38% 35% 48%


50% 50%
34% 42% 46% 43%


68%


0%


48%


0%


100%


44%


39%
67%


35% 33%


100%


48%


67% 73%
54% 58% 71% 66%


G
en


de
r


Ra
ce


/E
th


ni
ci


ty


Female


Male


59% 54% 49% 47% 58% 54%


62% 59% 48% 47%
63% 61%


Construction &
Evaluation


National Average


61%


Practice
Management


National Pass Rate


48%


Programming &
Analysis


National Pass Rate


61%


National Demographic Pass Rate
New York Demographic Pass RatePass Rates for New York







2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 11


ARE 5.0 Divisional Pass Rates by Demographic


The grey bar indicates the national pass rate for the related demographic group on each division.


American Indian or
Alaska Native


Another Group


Asian


Black or African
American


Hispanic, Latino,
or Spanish


Middle Eastern or
North African


Native Hawaiian
or Other Pacific
Islander


White


100%


38% 53% 60%
33%


67%


45% 49% 49% 54%
34% 34%


48% 55% 57% 62%
41% 50%


36% 36% 39%
55%


28% 32%


42% 50% 46% 52%
33% 30%


100%


48% 63%


0%


53%


0%


40% 50%


100%


58%
26% 40%


62% 60% 65% 71%
53% 53%


G
en


de
r


Ra
ce


/E
th


ni
ci


ty


Female


Male


49% 47% 59% 57%
40% 37%


60% 61% 60% 58% 52% 50%


Project Development
& Documentation


National Pass Rate


55%


Project
Management


National Pass Rate


60%


Project Planning &
Design


National Demographic Pass Rate
New York Demographic Pass RatePass Rates for New York


National Pass Rate
47%





rlopez
Text Box
NEW BUSINESS

rlopez
Text Box
LICENSURE TRENDS IN NEW YORK



unauthorized review, use, disclosure, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this
communication, or any of its contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this
communication in error, please reply to the sender and destroy all copies of the message.

33



JURISDICTIONAL DATA
NEW YORK
2025

34



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3

Architectural Licensure Overview��������������������������������������������������4

Jurisdictional Demographics������������������������������������������������������������� 6

ARE 5.0 Pass Rates��������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 8

35



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 3

INTRODUCTION
NCARB regularly analyzes and shares data highlighting current trends along the path to licensure, 
including program completion time, pass rates, and demographics. This information, which is 
gathered from customers’ NCARB Records, enables NCARB and our key stakeholders to make 
strategic decisions, educate policymakers and the public, and guide changes to our programs 	
and services. 

As a leader in your jurisdiction, you can use this data to guide discussions at the jurisdictional 
level. The information included in this packet has been filtered to share data gathered from 
licensure candidates and architects in your jurisdiction only. Each chart includes a basic 
explanation of what data is being shared, as well as an overview of the trends NCARB has seen 
at the national level for comparison.

As you review the data, here are a few key things to keep in mind: 

• Your jurisdictional data may not align with national trends.

• Not all NCARB Record holders submit their demographic data. However, the majority do
self-report their demographic data.

• Not all licensees in your jurisdiction are NCARB Record holders.

• Depending on the number of licensure candidates and architects in your jurisdiction, you
may see a much higher degree of fluctuation over time compared to the fluctuation seen
at the national level. Jurisdictions with a smaller pool of candidates/architects are more
likely to see dramatic change from year to year.

• NCARB will not share demographic data publicly if there are fewer than 30 individuals in a
designated group (our threshold for a valid sample size). However, we have shared all data
with you regardless of this sample size to ensure you have the most complete picture of
your jurisdiction.

• If no information is shown for a specific field or demographic, it is because no individuals
in your jurisdiction fit that field or demographic.

• The timeframe for the data reflected in a chart varies by chart. Refer to the chart
description for each chart to find this information.

If you have questions about the data presented in this packet, please feel free to reach out to 
Jenny Kawecki at jkawecki@ncarb.org.

36



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 4

ARCHITECTURAL  
LICENSURE OVERVIEW

2,434
reporting

experience

620
reporting experience
and taking the exam

2,051
taking the exam 5,105

active
licensure

candidates

541
candidates finished the path to licensure

53%
Pass Rate

45%
Reciprocal Licenses

55%
Resident Licenses

21,576
architects

3,518
certificate holders

• Pennsylvania

• New Jersey

• Connecticut

Architects in New York are most
frequently also licensed in:

LICENSED ARCHITECTS

LICENSURE CANDIDATES

New York

National Average
58%

This chart provides and overview of licensure candidates and licensed architects in your 
jurisdiction during the calendar year 2024, including: 

•	 The number of candidates working to complete the Architectural Experience Program® 
(AXP®), Architect Registration Examination® (ARE®), or both

•	 The average ARE pass rate in your jurisdiction compared to the national average

37



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 5

•	 The number of candidates who completed the licensure path in your jurisdiction

•	 The states where architects in your jurisdiction are most likely to hold reciprocal licenses 

National Trends
•	 In 2024, the number of active licensure candidates rose by 5% to 39,499. 

•	 There were 116,005 U.S. architects in 2024, a 4% decrease from 2023.

•	 The number of new architects held steady at 3,606.

•	 In 2024, the average time to licensure fell to 12.9 years, the first time this number has 
decreased since the COVID-19 pandemic.

•	 The average ratio of in-state to out-of-state licenses shifted slightly, with 59% reciprocal 
and 41% resident licenses.

38



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 6

JURISDICTIONAL DEMOGRAPHICS
Racial, Ethnic, and Gender Diversity

This table shows the approximate racial, ethnic, and gender diversity of individuals at each 
career stage for individuals who were seeking licensure or were licensed in this jurisdiction 
during the calendar year 2024. Individuals can be represented in multiple career stages. To 
ensure data privacy around exam performance, NCARB will report “insufficient information” if 
your jurisdiction has fewer than 5 individuals in a given demographic group in the “Taking the 
ARE” category.

All Architects New Architects Taking the ARE
Submitting
Experience

Opened NCARB
Record

G
en

de
r Female

Male

Et
hn

ic
it

y

American Indian or
Alaska Native

Another Group

Asian

Black or African
American

Hispanic, Latino, or
Spanish

Middle Eastern or
North African

Native Hawaiian or
Other Pacific Islander

White

To
ta

l

Total

2769 1562

1522 1498

1252

1155 485

461268

186

2759 15081102

814715 664

453

424

384329

297

279

273

263233

174

173142

104

86 59

47

3838

34 27

14

12

12

11 8

8

8

6

55

3

3

2

4795 33772671 1022504

New York

*** values do not meet NCARB's data privacy condition

39



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 7

Career Stage Definitions

New NCARB Record Holders: This stage includes all individuals who started an NCARB Record 
in 2024. Starting an NCARB Record is an approximation for beginning the path to licensure, as all 
candidates need an NCARB Record to document the education, experience, and examination 
requirements for licensure.

Reporting Experience: This stage includes all individuals who documented experience toward 
the AXP in 2024, based on the work date of the experience report. 

Taking the ARE: This stage includes all individuals who took an exam division in 2024. 

New Architects: This stage includes all individuals who finished their final “core requirement” for 
licensure in 2024. Core licensure requirements include education, experience, and examination, 
although some jurisdictions do have additional requirements. This stage is an approximation for 
individuals who received an initial license in 2024.

All Certificate Holders: This stage includes all individuals who hold an NCARB Certificate, which 
can be used to approximate the makeup of the architect population in this jurisdiction.

National Trends

NCARB has seen consistent growth in gender equity and racial diversity across all candidate 
stages over the past 5 years. In 2024, 49% of the licensure candidate population identified as a 
person of color, and 46% were women. 

Women now make up 47% of the testing population, and typically earn their licenses faster 
than men—completing requirements a year sooner on average. In 2024, nearly half (44%) of 
candidates completing the AXP and a third (33%) of candidates completing the ARE identified as 
a person of color.

In 2024, we also saw racial, ethnic, and gender diversity in the licensure candidate population 
beginning to make its way to the pool of licensed architects: in 2024, 1 in 3 new architects 
identified as a person of color..

40



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 8

ARE 5.0 PASS RATES
NCARB tracks pass rates to understand candidate performance across the exam’s six divisions. A 
“pass rate” reflects the proportion of division attempts that scored at or above the cut score for 
that division. “Overall pass rate” refers to the average pass rate across all six divisions. Thanks to 
enhanced data science capabilities, NCARB has been able to segment and analyze pass rates by 
demographic information, including race and ethnicity, gender, and age.

The charts below include information about pass rates in your jurisdiction during the calendar 
year 2024, including pass rates segmented by race, ethnicity, and gender. 

Overall ARE 5.0 Pass Rates

This chart shows each division’s pass rate for all candidates in your jurisdiction, including all 
division attempts in the calendar year 2024. The grey line indicates the national pass rate for all 
candidates on each division.

Construction &
Evaluation

Practice Management Programming &
Analysis

Project Development
& Documentation

Project Management Project Planning &
Design

58%

47%

57% 54%
59%

44%

ARE 5.0 Overall Pass Rates for New York
National Pass Rates

New York Pass Rates

41



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 9

Shift in Pass Rates by Division

This chart shows the change in ARE 5.0 pass rates for candidates in your jurisdiction across all 
six divisions over the last five years. The dashed grey line indicates the national pass rate for all 
candidates on each division.

At a national level, overall pass rates fell by 3% in 2024—a return to average following last 
year’s increase. NCARB’s free practice exams have helped drive this positive change, providing 
candidates with greater insight into the testing experience. Overall, candidates who took one of 
NCARB’s free practice exams before attempting the related division were 16 percentage points 
more likely to pass.

58%

47%

57%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

54%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

59%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

44%

Project Development &
Documentation Project Management Project Planning & Design

Pass Rates in New York
By Division since 2020

Construction & Evaluation Practice Management Programming & Analysis

National Average
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
New York Average

42



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 10

ARE 5.0 Divisional Pass Rates by Demographic

This chart shows each division’s 2024 pass rate for candidates in your jurisdiction segmented by 
the candidate’s race/ethnicity and gender. The grey bar indicates the national pass rate for the 
related demographic group on each division.

The chart shows data for the Construction & Evaluation, Practice Management, and Programming 
& Analysis divisions on this page and data for the Project Development & Documentation, 
Project Management, and Project Planning & Design divisions on the next page.

American Indian or
Alaska Native

Another Group

Asian

Black or African
American

Hispanic, Latino,
or Spanish

Middle Eastern or
North African

Native Hawaiian
or Other Pacific
Islander

White

50% 40%

100%

45%

100%
73%

52% 45% 37% 41% 48% 37%

52% 57% 47% 58% 51% 48%

40% 51%
29% 38% 35% 48%

50% 50%
34% 42% 46% 43%

68%

0%

48%

0%

100%

44%

39%
67%

35% 33%

100%

48%

67% 73%
54% 58% 71% 66%

G
en

de
r

Ra
ce

/E
th

ni
ci

ty

Female

Male

59% 54% 49% 47% 58% 54%

62% 59% 48% 47%
63% 61%

Construction &
Evaluation

National Average

61%

Practice
Management

National Pass Rate

48%

Programming &
Analysis

National Pass Rate

61%

National Demographic Pass Rate
New York Demographic Pass RatePass Rates for New York

43



2025 Jurisdictional Data: New York 11

ARE 5.0 Divisional Pass Rates by Demographic

The grey bar indicates the national pass rate for the related demographic group on each division.

American Indian or
Alaska Native

Another Group

Asian

Black or African
American

Hispanic, Latino,
or Spanish

Middle Eastern or
North African

Native Hawaiian
or Other Pacific
Islander

White

100%

38% 53% 60%
33%

67%

45% 49% 49% 54%
34% 34%

48% 55% 57% 62%
41% 50%

36% 36% 39%
55%

28% 32%

42% 50% 46% 52%
33% 30%

100%

48% 63%

0%

53%

0%

40% 50%

100%

58%
26% 40%

62% 60% 65% 71%
53% 53%

G
en

de
r

Ra
ce

/E
th

ni
ci

ty

Female

Male

49% 47% 59% 57%
40% 37%

60% 61% 60% 58% 52% 50%

Project Development
& Documentation

National Pass Rate

55%

Project
Management

National Pass Rate

60%

Project Planning &
Design

National Demographic Pass Rate
New York Demographic Pass RatePass Rates for New York

National Pass Rate
47%

44



45

rlopez
Text Box
NEW BUSINESS

rlopez
Text Box
EXPANSION IN USE OF FRADULENT SEALS



46



47



48



49



50



51



52

rlopez
Text Box
OTHER BOARD MEMBER TOPICS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS

rlopez
Text Box
nycobaNOMA OnSite PROGRAM



53



54



55



56



57



58



59


	Agenda 11 13 25
	State Board for Architecture
	AGENDA

	Christina Seilern CV R2
	Chirstina Seilern_Practical Exam 3 projects form_R2
	PRACTICAL EXAMINATION FORM

	August 6, 2025 Board minutes DRAFT 
	OPEN SESSION
	EXECUTIVE SESSION


	August 6, 2025 list of actions to go w minutes
	Board Report 11 13 25
	BODBrief-Sept-2025
	AXP Changes coming November 2025
	Explore Licensure Trends for New York email from NCARB
	New York-Jurisdictional-Data-Packets_202509
	Wired article on Scammers
	Other Board Member Topics - OnSite



